
 

Chartered as an EM Site Specific Advisory Board under the Federal Advisory Committee Act 

 

 

PORTSMOUTH EM 

SITE SPECIFIC ADVISORY BOARD 

Minutes of the March 3, 2011 SSAB Meeting • 6:00 p.m. 
  
  

Location:  The Ohio State University Endeavor Center, Room 160, Piketon, Ohio 
  

Site Specific Advisory Board (SSAB) Members Present:  Richard Snyder, Larry Parker, Gene 
Brushart, Lindy Coleman, Ervin Craft, Val Francis, Franklin Halstead, William Henderson, Brian 
Huber, Sharon Manson, Daniel Minter, Michael Payton, and Cristy Renner.  
 
SSAB Members Absent:  Shirley Bandy, Martha Cosby, Michael Lilly, Dan Moore, Roger 
Scaggs, and Terri Ann Smith 
  
Board Liaisons and Related Regulatory Agency Employees:  Maria Galanti, Ohio 
Environmental Protection Agency (Ohio EPA); Mike Rubadue, Ohio Dept of Health 
   
U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) and Contractors:  Joel Bradburne, Greg Simonton, and 
Judson Lilly, DOE; Julie Galloway and Cindy Lewis, EHI; Rick Greene and Janie Croswait, 
Restoration Services, Inc. (RSI); Sandy Childers, Lata/Parallax; Dan Mosley, USEC 
  
Facilitator:  Eric Roberts, EHI 
  
Public:  Stephanie Howe and Scott Miller, Ohio University; David Manuta, Mc2; Mark Johnson, 
TSBTC; Geoffrey Sea, SONG; J. Thompson, CDM;  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                  03.03.11 
         Board Minutes 

Page | 2 

Chartered as an EM Site Specific Advisory Board under the Federal Advisory Committee Act 
 

 

 
Call to Order: 
Snyder called the meeting to order. 
  
Roberts welcomed everyone and stated he would be facilitating the meeting.  There will be a public 
comment period after the administrative issues.  The Board should stay within its defined Scope and follow 
the Meeting Ground Rules adopted.  
   
January Minutes: 
Roberts called for any modifications or proposed changes to the January Minutes.  

 Halstead motioned to approve the January Minutes as presented, Motion seconded. 
o Motion carried, Minutes approved 

  
DDFO Comments: 
Bradburne gave a presentation on the following information: 

 Transition Progress 
 Budget Information 
 ARRA Update 
 Other Remediation Efforts 
 SODI Update 
 Public Outreach 

A copy of the above-stated presentation can be viewed on the SSAB website. 
  
Question/Comment: Answer:
Minter asked are there any other transitions going on 
right now.  

Bradburne stated there are 6 transition projects right 
now. This is an exciting time at the site. 

Francis asked what happens when the X-701B is 
completed. 

Galanti stated the soil data is 95% removal of TCE. 
The ground water has decreased in trend we put in 
various wells. We will monitor the water for a year. 

Snyder asked does SODI have a contract to remove 
the switchyard materials. 

Galanti stated yes they do, they were moving some of 
it out today. It has been sold to a contractor in Jackson.
 
Bradburne stated it takes awhile to get things started. 
It has been an adventure all around. 

Halstead asked has there been any action on the 
nickel. 

Bradburne stated the nickel is going to take longer, 
there is interest in it, but no decision has been made. 

 
Federal Coordinator Comments: 
Simonton announced that DOE would be having a science day on May 3 & 4, 2011. High School Juniors 
from the surrounding counties were invited to attend. We have 700 students scheduled and waiting to hear 
from a few more schools.  Plans are not finalized yet. Planning to have it from 9 to 1. We will have a 
driving tour around the site, tents with displays and lunch. It is exciting to have this interaction with the 
students. There is a lot of work to be done to get ready. 
 
Question/Comment: Answer:
Minter asks if the SSAB would have a station Simonton stated yes we would like the SSAB Board to 

have a station. 
 
Liaison Comments: 
Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (Ohio EPA): 
Galanti stated The ARRA projects are ending. There is a tremendous amount of paper going back and forth 
working on the D&D. Ohio EPA and DOE are looking at plans at the same time. The X-334 building has 
been removed, only the pad is left. The X-333 is in transition. 
 
Rubadue stated Ohio Department of Health has been working closely with EPA.  
 
 



                  03.03.11 
         Board Minutes 

Page | 3 

Chartered as an EM Site Specific Advisory Board under the Federal Advisory Committee Act 
 

 

 
 
 
Plant Tour Safety Procedures: 
Mosley gave a presentation on the following information: 

 Radiation Basics 
 Background Radiation 
 Exposure 
 Portsmouth Comparisons 
 Radiation Safety 

A copy of the above-stated presentation can be viewed on the SSAB website. 
 
Question/Comment: Answer:
Brushart asked where will the students be going 
during the science day at the plant. What amount of 
radiation will they be exposed too.  

Simonton stated we do not know all the details. DOE 
is working with the contractors to make plans. The 
students will not be in any buildings on-site. There 
will be guides for the tours. Safety will be a main 
concern when making plans for the day’s activities. 

Snyder asked would the students need to wear TLD’s 
to monitor radiation. 

Mosley stated that will be up to the RADCON 
manager. 

Parker asked do some employees wear the TLD’s all 
the time.  
 

Mosley stated they do if they work in any buildings 
that are monitored all the time, which would be the 
process buildings. 

 
Administrative Issues: 
Community Involvement Subcommittee: 
Brushart stated the Subcommittee’s February meeting had the largest attendance than ever before. The 
subcommittee had some discussion on the development of the Speakers Bureau presentation. After some 
changes are made the subcommittee will present it to the full Board for approval. The subcommittee had a 
discussion of interrelationship of SODI activities related to the SSAB scope. SODI is trying to remove and 
sell metals from the site for recycling. Fifty percent of the proceeds go back into the community through 
SODI and the other fifty percent goes to the U.S. Treasury. The subcommittee will continue to dialogue 
with SODI. The subcommittee also had a discussion on trying to develop the science day with DOE that 
will allow students from the surrounding counties to visit the site. 
 
Future D&D and Recycling Subcommittee: 
Renner stated the Subcommittee had an overview with Kevin Ironside regarding the process building PER. 
Instead of taking forty-eight months to complete the D&D it is only going to take fourteen months. 
 
Historical Preservation & Legacy Subcommittee: 
Huber stated the presentation that Jack Williams gave the subcommittee on the USEC oral history project 
was very impressive and informative.  The subcommittee had continued discussion on potential options for 
a convention center. The subcommittee decided that they needed to schedule a working session. Parker 
would redraft the recommendation before the working session. 
Manson stated that the subcommittee hopes to have a Recommendation to submit to the Board soon. 
 
Waste Disposition Subcommittee: 
Minter stated that Ironside gave a presentation on the CERCLA cell siting alternatives. The subcommittee 
decided that the parameters from Recommendation 11-01 should be put on a poster board to have at every 
meeting. The  subcommittee had a discussion on Northern New Mexico “Using Rail Transport for Moving 
Waste” Recommendation. The subcommittee thinks the recommendation needs to be changed because 
there is only one option to transport waste in the recommendation and that is by train. There needs to be 
other options to transport. 
 
Executive Subcommittee: 
Snyder stated the executive subcommittee discussed which events our Board members should attend. The 
subcommittee decided one staff and three board members should attend the Chairs meeting in Las Vegas. 
There will be a site round robin and the Board Chairs will have 5 minutes to present one to three slides on 



                  03.03.11 
         Board Minutes 

Page | 4 

Chartered as an EM Site Specific Advisory Board under the Federal Advisory Committee Act 
 

 

the board’s top three issues, one activity and an accomplishment.  The subcommittee would like to have a 
member attend the Intergovernmental meeting. It has the most interest within the EM scope. The 
subcommittee talked a little about the upcoming science fun day for High School juniors. 
 
Discussion on Top 3 Issues, 1 Accomplishment, and a Major Activity:  
Snyder stated the chairs came up with two issues to present at the Las Vegas Chairs meeting in April.  
 

 Issue #1 Waste Disposition 
 

 Issue #2 Reuse of Real Property 
 

 Accomplishment – Recommendation 10-1 
 

 Major Board Activity – Developing a future for the plant site. 
 
With some word smithing, no one was opposed to the Board Chairs presenting these items at the Chairs 
Meeting. 
 
Discussion on Nevada CAB REC: Using Rail Transport for Moving Waste: 
Snyder stated this recommendation has to pass at the Chairs meeting before it is brought back to our Board 
for approval. 
  
Public Comment:   
Sea stated Simonton’s statement on the nuclear power plant proposal is not as he presented it. One partner 
dropped out and Duke the lead partner will put a nuclear power plant in the southwest. Do not mislead us 
on the future use of the site. I was surprised by the Historical Preservation subcommittee update. I was in 
that meeting and there was a consensus reached between everyone that there is additional steps that need to 
be made before anything is done. All the other Historical Preservation groups in the community need to be 
involved before any proposals are pushed thru. 
 
Manuta stated Mosley had some wrong information in his presentation.  I bring this up for him to avoid 
any embarrassment in the future. 
 
Final Comments from the Board:  
No comments 
 
 
Snyder motioned to adjourn the meeting, Motion seconded. 

 Motion carried, Meeting adjourned 
  
Next Meeting Thursday, May 5, 2011, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

1. EHI to work on the PowerPoint slides for the Las Vegas Chairs meeting  
2. DOE to add the DUF6 Conversion plant update to the DDFO presentation for all the board 

meetings. 
3. SSAB to have a display/station at the DOE Science Days on May 3 & 4th at the plant. 


